A DAILY REPORT ON THE FOURTH WORLD CONFERENCE ON WOMEN

. Negonations Bulletin

A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations

Vol. 14 No. 15 Published by the International Institute for

Sustainable Development (1ISD) Saturday, 9 September 1995

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE FOURTH
WORLD CONFERENCE ON WOMEN
FRIDAY, 8 SEPTEMBER 1995

At the close of the first week of the FWCW, delegates
prepared to continue negotiations on the draft Platform for
Action and Declaration through the weekend. On Friday,
Working Group | considered Chapter II, the Global Framewor

“leaders, inter alia, as not only mothers but as managers and
entrepreneurs,” which was supported by Australia and the US,
among others, but the EU objected 24b(d) (development of
alternative media), delegates agreed to “support the development
of and finance as appropriate new” alternatives.

CONTACT GROUP OF WORKING GROUP |

The Contact Group of Working Group | met on Friday
morning to proceed with consideration of Section C (health) and
Khear reports from informal groups set up to consider difficult

and began work on Section J (media). Contact Group | contin %

with Section C (health). Working Group Il took up Section G
(power structures and decision making). Contact Group |l
completed readings of the first two sections of the draft
Declaration. Country statements also continued in the Plenary

WORKING GROUP |

Working Group |, chaired by Nana Ama Yeboa (Ghana),
continued consideration of Chapter Il (Global Framework), an
then began examining the section on mass media. Delegates
approved an informal group’s work on paragr&@i (UNIFEM
and INSTRAW), which included a call for resources from the
international community to be sufficient and maintained at an
adequate level.

CHAPTER II: Delegates agreed to remove the brackets fro
family structure[s] in38 (changes in family).

U@fdrtions of the text.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE C.4. (research and information).
In paragrapi10(d) (preventive action and research), “gender”
was removed from brackets. (8) (increased cancer risk), a
‘compromise formula was adopted: “inform women about the
factors which increase the risks of developing cancers and
infections of the reproductive tract so that they can make
informed decisions.” Irfh) (sexual health resources), brackets
dwere removed and text amended: “medicine and technology” and
fiigdgulation of fertility including natural family planning.” Ifi)
(unsafe abortion), “unsafe abortion” and “contraceptive” were
removed from brackets.
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE C.5. (Resources and action). In
111(a)(budget allocations), “where necessary” was tentatively
NMemoved. “Primary” health and “reproductive and sexual” were
removed from brackets. Brackets were delete@)r(innovative

CHAPTER IV. SECTION J (mass media): After a long debatiinding approaches). Ift) (local health services), “where

on 236 (negative images of women), delegates noted that meg
products “are also negatively affecting” women2B0(a)
(women'’s education), delegates agreed to Zambia’s proposal
“promote and ensure women’s equal access to” the media. In
239(c)(equal participation), delegates lifted brackets to call for
“full” participation. In 239(h) (freedom of media), the US

proposed replacing the reference to media involvement in soqig

issues with text from the Social Summit.

In 242(b)(training to use information technology), delegate
deleted the reference to “consider training.”24w(a)
(self-regulation of media), delegates called for professional
guidelines and codes of conduct and adopted the US propose
qualifier “consistent with freedom of expression.” The EU
objected to including “pornographic” i244(b) (guidelines
regarding violent materials), which remains bracketed.

In 245(b) (materials on women leaders), several countries,
including the G77/China and the EU, wanted to delete the
reference to “caring mothers and nurturers of happy families.”
Some, including Peru, Guatemala and Pakistan, supported a

liappropriate” was deleted. Brackets were removed fta&(b)
(youth NGOs and sexual and reproductive health)(apd
t@prioritize women'’s health).

WORKING GROUP Il

. Working Group Il convened in morning and afternoon
1&essions, chaired by Irene Freudenschuss (Austria), to consider
Sections G (power-sharing) and A (poverty) of Chapter IV
5 (Strategic Actions and Objectives).
SECTION G (Power-sharing): In paragrapd3(women in
decision making), the G77/China proposed combining the
thracketed text to note that equal participation in decision making
is a prerequisite for the promotion and functioning of democracy.
The EU, supported by Canada, proposed replacing the bracketed
text with a reference to women'’s participation strengthening
democracy. The G77/China objected 18817 (sources of
inequality), the G77/China proposal was accepted to combine the
bracketed text to include both discriminatory practices and
unequal power relations. The EU proposed changing family to

reference to “mothers.” Iran suggested a compromise referen

cddmilies. Iran objected, and it remains bracketed. The G77/China

This issue of theEarth Negotiations Bulleti® <enb@igc.apc.org> is written and edited by Peter Doran <foeeire@iol.ie>, Virginia Hulme, Y3
Wanhua <whyang@iisdpost.iisd.ca>, Lynn Wagner <grund@usc.edu> and Steve Wise <swise@vps.com>. French translation by Mongi
<gad@Tunisia.EU.net>. Internet coordination by Barbara Ann O’Leary <vsister@igc.apc.org>. The Managing Editor of the Bulletin is Lar
James Goree VI “Kimo” <kimo@pipeline.com>. The sustaining donors dBthiketin are the International Institute for Sustainable Developmer
(isd@web.apc.org), the United Nations Environment Programme and the Pew Charitable Trusts. General support for the Bulletin during ]
provided by the United Kingdom, Switzerland, GTZ and the World Bank. Partial funding for this volumeBdille&in has been provided by the
Ford Foundation, CIDA, Denmark, UNFPA, the Rockefeller Foundation and UNIFEM. The authors can be contacted in Beijing at the Cont
Grand Hotel by phone at +86 10 491 55 88 and fax at +86 10 491 0107. 1ISD can be contacted at 161 Portage Ave. E. Sixth Floor, Winnip¢
Manitoba R3B 0Y4 Canada. The opinions expressed ifctirth Negotiations Bulletiare those of the authors and do not necessarily

reflect the views of 1ISD and other funders. Excerpts fromBEheth Negotiations Bulletimay be used in other publications with T3,
appropriate citation. Electronic versions of Bglletin are automatically sent to e-mail distribution lists (ASCIl and PDF) and can begs |]'Ly~<
found on the Internet on tHenkageswWorld Wide Web server at <http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/> on the Internet. For further informat J’% '(E'
on ways to access, support or contactilaeth Negotiations Bulletisend e-mail to <enb@igc.apc.org>.

ing
Gadhoun
gston

1995 is

—

inental
20,




Saturday, 9 September 1995

proposal to delete brackets from a reference to non-formal
patterns of decision making was accepted. The EU proposed
adding a reference to culturally based male dominatioh8

(distribution of power at all levels), the EU proposed deleting th

reference to countries with 33.3% representation, but the
G77/China objected. Canada proposed noting that, in some
countries, quotas have been applied.

In 192(a)(goal of gender balance), the G77/China propose
removing brackets around the references to setting specific
targets and achieving equal representation. The US preferred
using a qualifier for targets, which are called for “inter alia.”
Delegates also included a reference to positive actich9dd)
(electoral system impact), delegates removed the brackets
surrounding the text. 1892(h)(government-funded
organizations), delegates called for governments to encourag
and where appropriate ensure, non-discriminatory policies in
those organizations, and retained the reference to increasing
number and raising the position of women1B2(i) (shared
responsibilities), the G77/China proposal to lift the brackets w
accepted.

In 193(c)(gender issues in political agendas), the G77/Chir

supported by Jordan, proposed lifting the brackets. The EU,

supported by Canada, proposed a reformulation. The G77/Ch

opposed. In94(a)(women leaders, executives and managers

Vol. 14 No. 15 Page 2

traditional land and property rights was accepted. Papua New
Guinea and others retained a reference to customary laws and
traditions, while Sudan and others insisted on bracketing it.

e
CONTACT GROUP OF WORKING GROUP I

The Contact Group chaired by Olga Pellicer (Mexico)
resumed consideration of the draft Beijing Declaration during an
l afternoon session. Delegates negotiated much of the Preamble
and reaffirmed commitments sections of a revised G77/China
draft, which incorporates some amendments from US, EU and
other proposals.

The first two preambular paragraphs were accepted. Delegates
added a paragraph on equality, development and peace. They
also added a paragraph on women'’s voices and diversity with the
Efirst word [Recognizing] in brackets. A paragraph regarding
women'’s status and obstacles was accepted. Language regarding
thBe unfavorable international economic environment was
bracketed in a paragraph regarding poverty. In a paragraph
APegarding women'’s status, women’s empowerment was added to

advancement.
&, |n a reaffirmed commitment of rights and principles in
. conventions, delegates debated which legal instruments should
I'k® included, in which order, and whether “human dignity” should
' be deleted. A paragraph regarding past conferences was accepted.

the G77/China deleted the bracketed reference to qualificationsrpe question of inserting language on promotion of rights and

In 194(d) (equality in NGOSs), delegates deleted the reference
equity. In194(e)(new roles of men and women), the G77/Chin
supported the reference to the family, but the EU preferred
“families.”

In 195(a)(UN employment), the G77/China preferred gendg

“parity,” but the EU preferred “balance.” t95(c)(collect and

disseminate data), the reference to “at least 40%” was deleteq

and the paragraph was acceptedl®6(c)(databases), the

G77/China proposed lifting the brackets. The EU, supported K

Russia, added a reference to data protection legislation, Mexi
added political parties, and Peru added a reference to other
NGOs, which was changed to other relevant bodies. All
proposals were accepted.

SECTION A (Poverty): Irb0 (feminization of poverty), the
G77/China, supported by the Holy See, proposed lifting the
brackets. EU proposed deleting the bracketed text. Canada

[Greedoms and full implementation of inalienable rights was sent
Ato an informal group. A paragraph regarding implementation of
the Nairobi Strategies was accepted. Delegates sent a paragraph
on spiritual and moral values, sustainable development, and
2rwomen’s special role to the informal group after some

i delegations suggested deletion.

IN THE CORRIDORS

}’ NGOs are reporting success in getting their proposals into the
FQraft Platform for Action. The health section is one example
where NGOs report that official delegations have used ideas and
arguments that NGOs have advocated, although they await the
results of closed informal consultations on key issues, such as
parental and sexual rights, race and ethnicity. Pre-Conference
preparations, including meetings with official delegations in their
capitals and at regional ministerial meetings, were among the

proposed replacing instability with insecurity. Delegates accepteg

“other emerging factors which may lead to insecurity of
families.”

In 60(e)(access to resources), the G77/China deleted the
bracketed text. 80(l) (migrants), the G77/China deleted a
reference to stringent migration policies and proposed a referg
to women migrant workers. The EU and Japan proposed
reformulations, but the G77/China preferred either retaining
reference to non-documented migrant workers or making no
distinction. Brackets were lifted fro®0 (m) (integration of poor
and displaced women).

In paragraplt®1(c)(solutions to external debt), the first
alternative paragraph in document L.3. was adopted, referend
inter alia, the Paris Club (1994) terms of debt forgiveness. In
paragraplt62(a) (anti-poverty programmes), a reference to the
social responsibility of governments was introduced. In
paragrapl62(c) (diverse needs), specific reference to “age,
ethnicity, and culture” was deleted from needs to be addresse
women'’s organizations. In paragraP®(d) (access to services),
G77/China reformulation called for the participation of women
organizations and NGOs in the “development and application
national health, education and social services strate@2 (&)
(education and retraining policies), the EU proposal to delete

reference to women'’s organizations, NGOs and various types qf

training was accepted. B2(f) (access to land, property and
credit), the G77/China proposals to add a reference to owners

btelategies that NGOs employed in their lobbying campaigns.
They credit the “Conference of Commitments” as a hook during
the intersessional period for bringing together interested groups
to consider the FWCW themes and the commitments they
wanted their nations make.

" THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY

WORKING GROUP I: The Working Group is expected to
meet during an afternoon session in Hall No. 16, where it is
expected to discuss the sections on health, media and the girl
child.

ing, CONTACT GROUP OF WORKING GROUP I: The

(9ontact Group will meet in Hall No. 16 during a morning session
to continue discussion on the section on health. Look for reports
from the informal groups on issues including resources, race and
ethnicity, parental rights, reference to ICPD and genetic
desgineering.
n WORKING GROUP II: The Working Group is expected to
'sneet during morning, afternoon and evening sessions in Hall No.
' &b, where it will discuss sections on economic structures,
mechanisms and environment.

CONTACT GROUP OF WORKING GROUP II: The
ontact Group will meet in Hall No. 10 during morning and

afternoon sessions to continue its consideration of the draft
hifeclaration.

and delete reference to the mobilization of NGOs to protect



